
 
   

 

 
  Date of Publication 16 November 2021 

Climate, Biodiversity & Planning  
Committee Meeting of Witney Town Council 
 

Tuesday, 23rd November, 2021 at 6.00 pm 
 
To members of the Climate, Biodiversity & Planning Committee - R Smith, A Prosser, J Aitman, O Collins, 
L Duncan, V Gwatkin, M Jones and A McMahon (and all other Town Councillors for information).  
 

You are hereby summonsed to the above meeting to be held in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney 
for the transaction of the business stated in the agenda below.  
 

Admission to Meetings 
 

All Council meetings are open to the public and press unless otherwise stated. 
 

Numbers of the public will be limited, with priority given to those who have registered to speak on an 
item on the agenda. Any member of the public wishing to attend the meeting should contact the 
Democratic and Legal Services Officer ( democracy@witney-tc.gov.uk ) in advance to reserve a seat. 
 

We will continue to observe social distancing and hand sanitiser will be available. 
 

For further information or clarification regarding the meeting contact the Democratic and Legal 
Services Officer at democracy@witney-tc.gov.uk  Tel: 01993 226071 
 

Recording of Meetings 
 

Under the Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 the council’s public meetings may be 
recorded, which includes filming, audio-recording as well as photography.  
 

As a matter of courtesy, if you intend to record any part of the proceedings please let the Town Clerk or 
Democratic Services Officer know before the start of the meeting. 
 

Agenda 
 
1. Apologies for Absence   

 To consider apologies and reasons for absence. 
 
Committee Members who are unable to attend the meeting should notify the Democratic & Legal 
Services Officer (democracy@witney-tc.gov.uk ) prior to the meeting, stating the reason for absence. 
 
Standing Order 309a)(v) permits the appointment of substitute Councillors to a Committee whose role 
is to replace ordinary Councillors at a meeting of a Committee if ordinary Councillors of the Committee 
have informed the Proper Officer before the meeting that they are unable to attend. 
 

2. Declarations of Interest   

 Members are reminded to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests in any of the items under 
consideration at this meeting in accordance with the Town Council’s code of conduct. 
 

3. MINUTES   
 
 a) To adopt and sign as correct the minutes of the committee held on 21 September & 12 

October (Attached) & 2 November 2021  (Pages 3 - 26) 

 b) Matters arising from the minutes of 21 September, 12 October & 2 November 2021   

Public Document Pack

Page 1

mailto:democracy@witney-tc.gov.uk
mailto:democracy@witney-tc.gov.uk
mailto:democracy@witney-tc.gov.uk


 
 

Mrs Sharon Groth  
FSLCC fCMgr 
Town Clerk 
 
 
Cllr Joy Aitman 
Mayor of Witney 

Town Hall, Market Square 
Witney, Oxon 
OX28 6AG 
T: 01993 704379 
F: 01993 771893 
info@witney-tc.gov.uk 
www.witney-tc.gov.uk 

4. Public Participation   

 The meeting will adjourn for this item. 
 
Members of the public may speak for a maximum of five minutes each during the period of public 
participation, in line with Standing Order 42.  Matters raised shall relate to the following items on the 
agenda. 
 

5. Planning Applications  (Pages 27 - 30) 

 To receive and consider a schedule of Planning Applications from West Oxfordshire District Council. 
 

 a) Planning Application by Ubico Ltd - Recycling Depot, Supergas Ind Est, Minster Lovell, OX29 
0SZ  (Pages 31 - 32) 

  To receive and consider a planning application from Oxfordshire County Council: 
Planning application by Ubico Ltd for planning permission: Proposed re-positioning of 
offices, cycle/ motorcycle and car parking, lorry parking, lighting and ancillary 
accommodation. Use of existing building for vehicle repairs and storage, inc. minor 
enlargement to vehicle bay door. Installation of CCTV cameras. Alterations to hours of 
operations. at Recycling Depot, Supergas Industrial Estate, Minster Lovell, OX29 0SZ 
 

6. Planning Decisions  (Pages 33 - 36) 

 To receive and consider a schedule of planning decisions from West Oxfordshire District Council. 
 

7. Application for New Premises Licence. W/21/00940/PRMA - Acqua Salata Ltd 62 Corn Street Witney  
(Pages 37 - 58) 

 To consider an application for a new Premises Licence under the Licensing Act 2003. 
 

8. Adoption of West Oxfordshire Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)  (Pages 
59 - 60) 

 To receive and note the West Oxfordshire Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD), as adopted by WODC, at a meeting of the Council held on 27th October 2021. 
 

9. Witney Traffic Advisory Committee - 28 September 2021  (Pages 61 - 68) 

 To receive the minutes of the Witney Traffic Advisory Committee held on 28 September 2021. 
 

10. Pavement Licence Application W/21/01061/PAVLIC - Smarts Fish & Chips, 50 Market Square, Witney  
(Pages 69 - 76) 

 To receive and consider an application for a pavement licence - W/21/01061/PAVLIC - Smarts Fish & 
Chips, 50 Market Square, Witney. 
 

 
 
 

 
Town Clerk 

 

Page 2

mailto:info@witney-tc.gov.uk


 
1 

 

CLIMATE, BIODIVERSITY & PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE 
WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL 

 
Held on Tuesday, 21 September 2021 

 
At 6.00 pm in the Main Hall, The Corn Exchange, Witney 

 
Present: 

 
Councillor R Smith (Chair) 

 
Councillors: A Prosser 

J Aitman 
 

V Gwatkin 
 

Officers: Adam Clapton Deputy Town Clerk 
 Claire Green Administration Support - Planning & 

Stronger Communities 
 Simon Wright Democratic & Legal Services Officer 

 
Others: 0 members of the public. 

 
P483   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors O Collins, L Duncan, M Jones and A 
McMahon 
 

P484   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Councillor R Smith declared a non-prejudicial interest in Application WTC/168/21 by virtue of 
knowing the applicant. 
 

P485   TO ADOPT AND SIGN AS CORRECT THE MINUTES OF THE COMMITTEE HELD ON 20 JULY AND 
10 & 31 AUGUST 2021. 
 

Resolved: 
 

The minutes of the meetings of the committee held on 20 July and 10 & 31 August 2021 were 
adopted as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

P486   MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES OF 20 JULY AND 10 & 31 AUGUST 2021 
 
Minute P438 – Thermal Imaging Camera 
 

It was reported that a suitable camera had been identified for purchase and discussions with 
groups who could operate it would be undertaken. 
 
Minute P441 – Wildflower Planting at Recreation Grounds 
 

The committee was advised that locations for the planting together with the approach to be 
taken had been agreed. Members noted the need for sites to be mowed at appropriate times 
and that the work would be undertaken by the Council’s works team. 
 
The committee gave agreement for the wildflower planting to be undertaken. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1Page 3

Agenda Item 3a



Climate, Biodiversity & Planning - 21 September 2021 

 
2 

P487   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation. 
 

P488   PLANNING APPLICATIONS 
 
The Committee received and considered a schedule of planning applications received from West 
Oxfordshire District Council. 

 
Resolved: 
 
That the comments, as per the attached schedule, be forwarded to West Oxfordshire District 
Council. 
 

P489   PLANNING DECISIONS 
 
The Committee received and considered a schedule of planning decisions received from West 
Oxfordshire District Council.  

 
Resolved:  
 
That the list circulated advising of District Council planning decisions be noted. 
 

P490   AVENUE TWO, WITNEY - PROPOSED PARKING RESTRICTIONS 
 
The committee considered a consultation document from Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) in 
respect of an application for parking restrictions at Avenue Two, Witney. It was reported that 
officers and the Chair had contacted OCC to establish further details and seeking guidance on 
relevant issues that could be raised. 

 
Members expressed their disappointment that the application had been received prior to the 
determination of the adjacent planning application by West Oxfordshire District Council. During 
discussion the committee considered the current use of the area for parking, access to nearby 
industrial estates and the Country Park, pedestrian/cycle safety and the ambition for an active 
travel route in the area. 
 
It was suggested and agreed that an objection be raised incorporating the concerns raised at the 
meeting and as part of the planning application consultation. In addition a letter should be sent 
from the Town Clerk to OCC, copied to the local County Councillors, regarding the Town Council 
concerns. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That, the response as appended to these minutes be submitted with regard to the 
application for parking restrictions at Avenue 2, Witney: and 
 

2. That, a letter be sent to Oxfordshire County Council, copied to local County Councillors, 
by the Town Clerk with regard to the application. 

 
 
 

 

Page 2Page 4



Climate, Biodiversity & Planning - 21 September 2021 

 
3 

P491   OXFORDSHIRE PLAN 2050 
 
Consideration was given to a consultation document in respect of the Oxfordshire Plan 2050. It 
was explained that the plan would sit above the district council Local Plans and consisted of a 
number of priority themes to which the committee was being asked to consider with regard to 
Witney. 

 
The committee considered the themes of Addressing Climate Change, Improving Environmental 
Quality, Creating Strong and Healthy Communities, Planning for Sustainable Travel and 
Connectivity and Creating Jobs and Providing Homes and identified responses that could impact 
on Witney. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That, the response, appended to these minutes, be submitted as the council response to the 
consultation on Oxfordshire Plan 2050.  
  

P492   OXFORD-CAMBRIDGE ARC PUBLIC CONSULTATION 
 
The committee considered a central government consultation about the future of the Oxford-
Cambridge Arc, seeking views to help shape a vision for the Spatial Framework. 

 
Members acknowledged the links to the Oxfordshire 2050 Plan and the need for Witney to be 
recognised despite being on the boundary of the proposals. 
 
It was agreed that a response based on the issues raised in respect of the Oxfordshire 2050 plan 
be submitted. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the following response be submitted in respect of the consultation: 
 
Witney Town Council welcomes the consultation on the proposed Oxford-Cambridge Arc and 
although the town is not directly impacted, looks forward to a more substantial rapid travel 
network as part of a wider scheme reaching the outer areas of the County, West Oxfordshire 
included.  
 
The principle areas in this part of the County along with the Town Council have declared Climate 
Emergencies so it would ask that the scheme compliments the policies of the emerging 
Oxfordshire Plan 2050, including; Addressing Climate Change, Improving Environmental Quality 
and Creating Strong and Healthy Communities so it is fundamentally driven by the sustainability 
of existing communities, rather than provision of further housing across green areas.  
 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at: 7.30 pm 

Chair 

Page 3Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



1


Witney Town Council


Planning Minutes - 21st September 2021


488


488- 1
 WTC/161/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02748/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 26/08/2021


Location :-
 44 ASHCOMBE CRESCENT
 Date Returned :-
 22/09/2021

ASHCOMBE CRESCENT


Proposal :
 Conservatory conversion to provide garden room.


Observations :
 While Witney Town Council does not object to this application in terms of 

material concerns, it notes the loss of permeable drainage and would ask that 

mitigating measures are considered to help decrease the possibility of surface 

water flooding in this area, in accordance with policy EH7 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.


488- 2
 WTC/162/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02894/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 26/08/2021


Location :-
 81 FARMERS CLOSE
 Date Returned :-
 22/09/2021

FARMERS CLOSE


Proposal :
 Erection of porch to front and first floor side extension.


Observations :
 While Witney Town Council does not object to this application in terms of 

material concerns, it notes the loss of permeable drainage and would ask that 

mitigating measures are considered to help decrease the possibility of surface 

water flooding in this area, in accordance with policy EH7 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.


488- 3
 WTC/164/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02868/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 06/09/2021


Location :-
 4 TUNGSTEN PARK
 Date Returned :-
 22/09/2021

COLLETTS WAY


Proposal :
 Erection of external cantilever storage racks and associated lighting units.


Observations :
 While Witney Town Council does not object to this application, there was a 

discussion of concerns, with the following observations:


- That Planning Officers seek advice from the relevant technical consultees, and 

that the proposed scheme should give full consideration for the neighbourliness 

of potential light spill and ensure that this does not have a negative impact for 

neighbouring residential properties. Proportionate conditions should be applied 

to ensure that the lights are not in use when and where it isn't necessary (time 

restricted).


- Through consultation with WODC Conservation Officers, members ask that the 

scheme minimises disruption to wildlife and that all possible mitigation 

measures are applied.


Page No  5


Page 5

Minute Item P488

Page 7



488- 4
 WTC/165/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02970/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 06/09/2021


Location :-
 49 VALENCE CRESCENT
 Date Returned :-
 22/09/2021

VALENCE CRESCENT


Proposal :
 Conversion of integral garage to living accommodation.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


488- 5
 WTC/166/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02834/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 13/09/2021


Location :-
 UNIT 6-7 NEWLAND IND EST
 Date Returned :-
 27/09/2021

NEWLAND


Proposal :
 Changes to internal layout of units and replace existing windows and doors in 

front elevation of Unit 6 with new window, door and two roller doors. 

(Retrospective).


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


488- 6
 WTC/167/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02963/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 13/09/2021


Location :-
 14 HERON DRIVE
 Date Returned :-
 27/09/2021

HERON DRIVE


Proposal :
 Erection of timber, pent-roof garden shed.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


488- 7
 WTC/168/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03011/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 13/09/2021


Location :-
 95 BURFORD ROAD
 Date Returned :-
 27/09/2021

BURFORD ROAD


Proposal :
 Rear single storey infill extension.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


488- 8
 WTC/169/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02917/ADV
 Type :- 
 ADVERTISIN


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 13/09/2021


Location :-
 27 MARKET SQUARE
 Date Returned :-
 27/09/2021

MARKET SQUARE


Proposal :
 New non-illuminated fascia and projecting signs.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


488- 9
 WTC/170/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02931/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 13/09/2021


Location :-
 THE GRIFFIN INN
 Date Returned :-
 27/09/2021

NEWLAND


Proposal :
 Replace existing first floor rear window with door and installation of fire escape 

stairs.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


Page No  6


Page 6Page 8



488- 10
 WTC/171/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02932/LBC
 Type :- 
 LISTED BUI


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 13/09/2021


Location :-
 THE GRIFFIN INN
 Date Returned :-
 27/09/2021

NEWLAND


Proposal :
 Internal and external alterations to replace existing first floor rear window with 

door and installation of fire escape stairs.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


488- 11
 WTC/172/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03031/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 13/09/2021


Location :-
 13 WILLOWBANK
 Date Returned :-
 27/09/2021

WILLOWBANK


Proposal :
 Change of use of land to extend the domestic curtilage along with the addition 

of decking (retrospective).


Observations :
 Witney Town Council object to this application. Members do not support 

development outside of the applicants existing boundary and do not want to set 

precedent for this type of development in Witney. This development does not 

accord to Policy OS2 in that it does not form a logical complement to the 

existing pattern of development or the character of the area, and it does not 

enhance the local landscape and the setting of the settlement.


488- 12
 WTC/173/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03046/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 13/09/2021


Location :-
 38 DAVENPORT ROAD
 Date Returned :-
 27/09/2021

DAVENPORT ROAD


Proposal :
 Erection of two storey side and single storey rear extension.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


The Meeting closed at :  7:30pm


Signed : 
 Date:
Chairman


On behalf of :- 
 Witney Town Council


Page No  7


Page 7Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Witney Town Council strongly object to the proposal to introduce new parking prohibitions in 

Witney at Avenue Two (Parkside Business Park) with new sections of Double Yellow Lines on both 

sides for the section South of its East/West spur. 

The Oxfordshire County Council ‘Statement of Reasons’ document states “proposed measures are 

aimed at ensuring that 1, danger is minimised whilst 2, facilitating the effective and safe passage of 

traffic and the provision of appropriate on-street parking facilities.” 

Since the proposal is taking away on-street parking, reason 2 is flawed. Witney Town Council reject 

the premise of the proposed parking restrictions - These proposals are being made primarily to 

facilitate transit of HGVs at the expense of on-street parking. This proposal doesn’t remove danger, 

it facilitates an extra danger that wasn’t present before. Any new appropriate development should 

plan site access entirely on the East/West spur of Avenue Two. 

Witney Town Council oppose all new HGV and commercial vehicle access on this section of the 

North/South spur. The Southern end of Avenue Two is not a dead-end. It is a busy, well-used active 

travel route used by families and children, it is the main route used by schoolchildren, pedestrians 

and cyclists from Ducklington. The Sustrans route that passes through this section of Avenue Two is 

a National Cycle Network Route (Route 577) and should be protected. 

A primary concern for Witney Town Council is the provision of a safe active travel route for our 

residents. Witney is embarking on an LCWIP (Local Cycling, Walking and Infrastructure Policy) and 

this proposal undermines this. This section of Avenue Two needs developing as an active travel 

route, providing safe connections to and across Station Lane, not hampering by the introduction of 

more HGVs and commercial vehicle (LGV and van) movements. 

Further, Avenue Two is the main access to Witney Lake and Country Park - a Witney Town Council 

amenity for leisure and enjoyment of nature. The Park also provides popular off-road through routes 

to Cogges and Ducklington. The current parking on this section of the North/South spur is the only 

parking available for users of the Lake and Country Park, particularly for those of limited mobility who 

cannot enjoy it by entirely active means of transport. Members are concerned that the plans are not 

taking in to account that this is a busy thoroughfare for those users. The on-road parking has a wide-

ranging community benefit and should not be removed for the advantage of one business. 

The plans give an indication of the incredibly tight turning route/movement of HGVs entering and 

exiting the site, even with the removal of parking. The plans do not illustrate that these vehicle 

movements include any safety features to protect pedestrians and cyclists, users of the footpath and 

cycle route would be at unacceptable risk of harm. 

The current on-street parking is an overflow from users of other businesses on the Industrial Park. 

Has the developer carried out an assessment or consultation with the business owners and 

employers in the neighbouring units who undoubtedly use the current on-street parking that is 

available? Is there a wider travel and transport plan for neighbouring businesses? Any assessment 

needs to be inclusive of the potential impact of the proposed Travis Perkins development as well as 

users of other business units at this site. 

The current parking arrangements for Avenue Two provides far greater social value to Witney residents 

than 2 new HGV accesses to the commercial site and builders' yard. Particularly since the yard could be 

designed with access from the East/West spur. The social value is primarily for access to the Lake & 

Country Park but also occasionally for users of the bowls club at the Leys and also for workers at 

the assorted established businesses on Avenue Two. 

Page 9

Minute Item P490

Page 11



Whilst Witney Town Council do not commit to supporting parking in this location in perpetuity, we 

strongly oppose removal of parking for the sake of introducing HGV access for one business. If a scheme 

came forward that incorporated improvements for safe access to the Lake & Country Park, as well as 

better connectivity to promote active travel, then perhaps it might be more acceptable to Witney 

residents. However, Witney Town Council can’t support a proposal for removal of on-street parking 

for the sole purpose of making the route more suitable for accommodating HGVs, and frequent 

commercial vehicle movements. 

Since the sole motivation for this proposal to introduce new parking prohibitions is to facilitate a 

planning application, Witney Town Council would like Oxfordshire County Council to consider our 

serious concerns and to reflect them in their response to the related planning application (West 

Oxfordshire District Council reference 21/02210/FUL), so that HGV’s are not introduced to the route. 

Witney Town Council would like the developer to re-consider the layout in order that HGV access is 

limited to the East/West spur road where there is less likelihood of pedestrian and cyclist conflict. 

 

 

Page 10Page 12



Oxfordshire Plan 2050 

Response from Witney Town Council – October 2021 

 

As Witney is the administrative town and largest service centre in West Oxfordshire, the Town Council 

welcomes a further opportunity to help shape the Oxfordshire Plan 2050 (OP 2050). The Council has 

ambitious, yet realistic aspirations for the services it offers as well as on the climate, environment and 

health and wellbeing of its residents, all of which share a synergy with this plan over the next 30 years. 

Below are  comments concerning individual themes and policies of the plan: 

 

Theme 1 – Addressing Climate Change 

The Town Council welcomes policies on energy and hopes that all authorities can work collaboratively 

across Oxfordshire to deliver policies on locally distributed community energy networks in West 

Oxfordshire before 2050, therefore hastening sustainable design and construction. 

Flooding is a particular risk in Witney with occurrences of serious flooding becoming more prevalent. 

The Town Council looks forward to policies addressing this issue particularly concerning mitigations 

which should be implemented prior to the commencement of new developments. 

 

Theme 2 – Improving Environmental Quality 

The Town Council looks forward to the OP 2050 protecting and enhancing the landscape characters in 

Witney, including the Upper and Lower Windrush Valley, buffers between the town and outlying 

villages and addressing the ownership & management of land.  

Water quality and the affects of pollution in the River Windrush and its tributaries is a major concern 

in Witney. the Town Council would like to see policies addressing the discharge of sewage into the 

waterways by businesses, but also agricultural pollution from farms which lie outside of the town. 

The Town Council would also welcome robust policies on air quality, with the Bridge Street area of 

Witney suffering poorly. The emerging Oxfordshire Transport Policy may take a lead on this, but the 

OP 2050 policies could be extended to include the sustainability of transporting food and products, 

looking at the links between the service centres such as Witney and its neighbours.  

 

Theme 3 – Creating Strong & Healthy Communities 

The Town Council is an enthusiastic supporter of creating healthy and stronger communities.  

More consideration should be given on policies which allow access to land so residents can enjoy the 

countryside as recreation. Many areas within walking distanced are private and prohibit public access.  

The connections between Witney village neighbours are generally only via roads and overgrown 

bridleways, rather than footpaths and designated cycle lanes. As a supporter of Active Travel, policies 

on this connectivity would be welcomed along with one providing infrastructure from new 

developments for the 15 Minute Neighbourhoods and School Streets initiatives 

Page 11

Minute Item P491

Page 13



A more strategic oversight of County sports and recreational facilities is required with a greater power 

to deliver them by local Councils. The dissemination of information on local amenities to other areas 

in the County is needed. Stronger policies outlining infrastructure which developers must provide in 

their schemes for example football pitches and recreation areas should be provided. 

 

Theme 4 – Planning for Sustainable Travel & Connectivity 

The requirement of people, businesses, tourists and freight to traverse the County is a concern which 

needs to be addressed in the OP 2050. The current infrastructure is already oversubscribed and the 

effect this has on these groups cannot be underestimated in terms of cost to Witney, the community 

and the County. 

The Town Council is a support of railway from Carterton to Oxford and beyond to serve the 

communities of South-West Oxfordshire. The current plans for the A40 bus lane between Witney and 

Oxford with a travel hub at Eynsham do not address the problem; any hub needs to be nearer to 

Witney to reduce the traffic between there and Oxford. 

Transport links to Oxford Parkway and the outer parts of the County with rapid links to the rest of the 

County and the Oxford-Cambridge Arc should also be high in the priorities of forming the OP 2050. 

 

Theme 5 – Creating Jobs & Providing Homes 

The Town Council welcomes policies on the economy, jobs and tourism. It would further welcome 

policies on Town Centre renewal to help create a ‘buzz’ in the town centres, these could include easier 

facilitation of community events and festivities.   

Policies on creating more easily accessible funding for and investment in culture and the arts would 

be welcomed. West Oxfordshire is severely lacking in this regard and is often overlooked during the 

current planning process. 

Affordable housing is an issue in Witney and across West Oxfordshire so the Town Council would like 

to see policies which provide quality, local affordable homes, rather than landowners, investors, and 

developers profiting from inflated land and property values.  

Town and Parish Councils often require land within their town or village centres to provide items 

discharging their functions of providing a community amenity. A policy to make it easier for towns to 

have the right to buy pockets of land in town centres would be welcomed. 

Page 12Page 14



 
1 

 

CLIMATE, BIODIVERSITY & PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE 
WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL 

 
Held on Tuesday, 12 October 2021 

 
At 6.00 pm in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney 

 
Present: 

 
Councillor R Smith (Chair) 

 
Councillors: A Prosser 

V Gwatkin 
 

M Jones 
 

Officers: Adam Clapton Deputy Town Clerk 
 Claire Green Administration Support - Planning & 

Stronger Communities 
 Simon Wright Democratic & Legal Services Officer 

 
Others: No members of the public. 

 
P536   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 

An apology for absence was received from Councillor J Aitman who was representing the Council 
at an event in her role as Mayor. Apologies were also received from Councillors O Collins, L 
Duncan and A McMahon. 
 

P537   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

There were no declarations of interest from members or officers. 
 

P538   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

There was no public participation. 
 

P539   COMMITTEE WORK PLAN 
 

The Committee received the report of the Town Clerk providing an update on the Committee’s 
work plan which included projects identified as part of the Council’s Draft Strategic Plan and 
Budget Setting agreed in February 2021, as well as the Open Spaces Strategy adopted in June 
2021. Members were also requested to consider items for inclusion in the budget setting 
process. 
 

The committee highlighted the need to meet the Climate Emergency targets that has been 
discussed by Council together with the need for an active travel plan for sites owned by the 
Town Council particularly the Lake & Country Park.  
 

It was noted that the existing budget of £10,000 covered the management plan for that site and 
that it was hoped a Park Ranger would be appointed in due course. Members were advised that 
the report regarding the lake survey was expected soon along with an update on a potential 
Forest School project and these may have some budgetary implications. It was agreed that the 
outcomes be reported to the next meeting for budgetary consideration. 

Public Document Pack

Page 1Page 15



Climate, Biodiversity & Planning - 12 October 2021 

 
2 

 
In respect of achieving carbon neutrality the current budgetary position was clarified in that 
£35,000 had been allocated for solar panels at the Works Depot but this may be dependent on 
the future use of that site. Discussion ensued regarding the need to make improvements at the 
Town Council venues on matters such as replacing windows, heating systems and making the 
building more energy efficient. It was agreed that this would need to be a phased approach and 
funding should be allocated to meet the costs. It was questioned as to whether alternative 
funding schemes or loans could be accessed and it was agreed that this was something that 
could be explored. 
 
Finally, the implementation of 20mph Zones and Community Speedwatch schemes in Witney 
were discussed and it was agreed that funding should be put in place to meet additional costs 
associated with the initiatives. 
 
Resolved: 
 

1. That, the Committee Work Plan be noted; 
 

2. That, a report on the outcome of the lake survey be reported to the next meeting for 
consideration of any budgetary implications; and 
 

3. That, the following budgetary requests be recommended: 
 

Active Travel Infrastructure - £20,000 
That each spending Committee considers energy efficiency works at venues under their 
remit and budgets accordingly – up to £50,000 per venue 

Community Speedwatch/20 mph zones - £2,000; and 
 

4. That, options for funding the above schemes from loans or other grant schemes be 
explored. 

 
P540   PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
The Committee received and considered a schedule of planning applications received from West 
Oxfordshire District Council. 
 

Resolved: 
 

That the comments, as per the attached schedule, be forwarded to West Oxfordshire District 
Council. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at: 7.35 pm 

 
Chair 

Page 2Page 16



1


Witney Town Council


Planning Minutes - 12th October 2021


540


540- 1
 WTC/174/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02929/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 20/09/21


Location :-
 LAND AT WINDRUSH PARK
 Date Returned :-
 13/10/21

WINDRUSH PARK ROAD


Proposal :
 Erection of 2 industrial units (Use Class E(g)iii, B2 and B8), to include external 

ancillary service areas, car and cycle parking.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council object to this application.


The plans do not go far enough to show where the cycle paths link to existing 

networks, or show how and where the paths cross the site. In line with Policy 

T1, All new development should be designed to maximise opportunities for 

walking, cycling and the use of public transport. The current scheme is 

unambitious, in that more can be done to provide opportunities for walking and 

cycling. Further, Policy T3 states that Development that fails to make adequate 

provision of measures to encourage the use of non-car modes of transport will 

not be favourably considered.


Witney Town Council echo the views of the Local Lead Flood Authority and 

request that SuDS features be incorporated whenever possible, such as porous 

paving in the car park. Similarly, members agree with the submission from 

Thames Valley Police and prior to this application being approved, request 

further details of the boundary treatments and lighting at the site.


Whilst Witney Town Council object to the current proposal, development of the 

site is supported and members welcome revised plans with consideration of the 

points raised above. This is also an opportunity for the applicant to incorporate 

sustainable features such as Solar PV and vehicle charging points, in line with 

Core Objectives CO15, CO17 and CO18 of the West Oxfordshire Local Plan 

2031.


540- 2
 WTC/175/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03061/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 21/09/21


Location :-
 74 NEWLAND
 Date Returned :-
 14/10/21

NEWLAND


Proposal :
 Erection of first floor rear extension, alterations to raise the roof height above 

existing kitchen and installation of roof lights.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


540- 3
 WTC/176/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02920/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 27/09/21


Location :-
 LAND TO THE REAR OF 96 HIGH 
 Date Returned :-
 14/10/21

ST

HIGH STREET


Proposal :
 Construction of dwelling and detached outbuilding comprising garaging and 


Page No  3


Page 3

Minute Item P540

Page 17



garden shed with storage above.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council object to this application. The Flood Risk Assessment 

states that the application site is at high risk of river flooding, with no flood 

defences in situ. Even with proposed mitigation measures, the flood risk 

assessment concludes that overall flood risk to the development itself is 

medium.


Further, the assessment indicates that development may have an adverse 

impact on local flood risk. Witney Town Council object to the proposal on the 

grounds that flood risk is increased for nearby properties - This area has been 

badly affected by river flooding and surface water flooding as recently as 

December 2020. 


540- 4
 WTC/177/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03113/LBC
 Type :- 
 LISTED BUI


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 27/09/21


Location :-
 63 CORN STREET
 Date Returned :-
 13/10/21

CORN STREET


Proposal :
 Alterations to re-build brick chimney stack.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


540- 5
 WTC/178/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03112/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 27/09/21


Location :-
 24 PARK ROAD
 Date Returned :-
 13/10/21

PARK ROAD


Proposal :
 Erection of a single storey front extension.


Observations :
 While Witney Town Council does not object to this application in terms of 

material concerns, it notes the loss of permeable drainage and would ask that 

mitigating measures are considered to help decrease the possibility of surface 

water flooding in this area, in accordance with policy EH7 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.


540- 6
 WTC/179/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03197/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 29/09/21


Location :-
 38 MOOR AVENUE
 Date Returned :-
 13/10/21

MOOR AVENUE


Proposal :
 Single story rear extension for kitchen dining area and utlity.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


540- 7
 WTC/180/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03190/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 30/09/21


Location :-
 5 LAVENDER VIEW
 Date Returned :-
 13/10/21

LAVENDER VIEW


Proposal :
 New front dormer and roof light in front of roof and two rear roof lights as part of 

loft conversion.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


Page No  4


Page 4Page 18



540- 8
 WTC/181/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03199/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 30/09/21


Location :-
 THE OCTAVES
 Date Returned :-
 14/10/21

NEW YATT ROAD


Proposal :
 Demolition of existing conservatory and outbuildings. Construction of single 

storey rear and side extension to main house and single storey annexe in 

garden. Replacement of existing windows to main house and alterations 

internally.


Observations :
 While Witney Town Council does not object to this application in terms of 

material concerns, it notes the loss of permeable drainage and would ask that 

mitigating measures are considered to help decrease the possibility of surface 

water flooding in this area, in accordance with policy EH7 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.


540- 9
 WTC/182/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03184/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 30/09/21


Location :-
 198 WADARDS MEADOW
 Date Returned :-
 14/10/21

WADARDS MEADOW


Proposal :
 Erection of a single storey replacement rear extension.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


540- 10
 WTC/183/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03093/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 30/09/21


Location :-
 66 NEW YATT ROAD
 Date Returned :-
 14/10/21

NEW YATT ROAD


Proposal :
 Construction of a carport with formation of driveway along with the installation of 

an electric gate and fencing to the west and east boundaries.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


540- 11
 WTC/184/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03160/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 30/09/21


Location :-
 UNIT 5 WOOLGATE SHOPPING 
 Date Returned :-
 14/10/21

CENTR

WOOLGATE SHOPPING CENTRE


Proposal :
 Alterations to existing shop front entrance and installation of 4 air conditioning 

condenser units to rear elevation.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


540- 12
 WTC/185/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03089/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 04/10/21


Location :-
 UNIT 23, AVENUE ONE
 Date Returned :-
 14/10/21

AVENUE ONE


Proposal :
 Alterations to include the erection of single storey rear extension, the addition of 

a new fire exit and 3 new windows to West elevation.


Observations :
 While Witney Town Council does not object to this application, members have 

shown concern for maintaining emergency access/safe egress at the rear of 

neighbouring units.


Page No  5


Page 5Page 19



Additionally, members have noted that the site plan shows a nearby 

watercourse and request that Officers check that the proposal does not 

compromise local drainage.


540- 13
 WTC/186/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02905/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 04/10/21


Location :-
 6 CHURCH GREEN
 Date Returned :-
 14/10/21

CHURCH GREEN


Proposal :
 Conversion of existing offices to create four flats along with the construction of a 

further flat in car park together with associated works.


Observations :
 While Witney Town Council does not object to this application, Members note 

the ERS consultation comment regarding contaminated land and agree with the 

recommended planning condition requiring a site investigation.


In line with Policy T1, All new development should be designed to maximise 

opportunities for walking, cycling and the use of public transport. The current 

proposal is lacking in cycle storage and Members encourage more safe cycle 

parking and storage to provide for the proposed number of residents.


Members echo the response from Thames Water and would ask that mitigating 

measures are considered to help decrease the possibility of surface water 

flooding in this area, in accordance with policy EH7 of the West Oxfordshire 

Local Plan 2031.


540- 14
 WTC/187/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03193/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 04/10/21


Location :-
 2 SPRINGFIELD PARK
 Date Returned :-
 14/10/21

SPRINGFIELD PARK


Proposal :
 Construction of detached dwelling and formation of new access onto Springfield 

Park.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


The Meeting closed at :  7:30pm


Signed : 
 Date:
Chairman


On behalf of :- 
 Witney Town Council


Page No  6


Page 6Page 20



 
1 

 

CLIMATE, BIODIVERSITY & PLANNING COMMITTEE MEETING OF THE 
WITNEY TOWN COUNCIL 

 
Held on Tuesday, 2 November 2021 

 
At 6.00 pm in the Gallery Room, The Corn Exchange, Witney 

 
Present: 

 
Councillor A Prosser (Chair) 

 
Councillors: L Duncan 

V Gwatkin 
 

D Butterfield (In place of R Smith) 
 

Officers: Adam Clapton Deputy Town Clerk 
 Claire Green Administration Support - Planning & 

Stronger Communities 
 

Others: 1 Member of the public. 
 

P549   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for their absence were received from Cllrs R Smith, J Aitman, O Collins and A 
McMahon. 

 
Cllr D Butterfield attended for Cllr R Smith. 
 

P550   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
Cllr A Prosser notified of non-pecuniary or prejudicial interests in planning items WTC/190, 191 
and 196. The latter being erection of 110 dwellings off Hailey Road Witney. Cllr Prosser had 
campaigned against housing here but was able to consider this application on its planning 
merits. 
 

P551   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
The Committee adjourned for this item. 

 
Mr W Wareing of Witney Flood Mitigation Group addressed the Committee concerning flooding 
in Witney, added as an urgent agenda item with the express permission of the Chair. 
 

The Committee reconvened following this item. 
 

 
P552   PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
The Committee received and considered a schedule of planning applications received from West 
Oxfordshire District Council. 
 

Resolved: 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 1Page 21



Climate, Biodiversity & Planning - 2 November 2021 

 
2 

That the comments, as per the attached schedule, be forwarded to West Oxfordshire District 
Council. 
 

P553   LAKE & COUNTRY PARK UPDATE 
 
The Committee received and considered the report of the Maintenance & Environmental 
Services Officer concerning vegetation surveys and a potential Forest School at Witney Lake and 
Country Park. 

 
Members noted the results of the vegetation survey and agreed that further surveys and 
discussions should take place with experts to inform Land Management policies from the 
existing budget. 
 
With regards to the Forest School, members heard that meetings had taken place with current 
and potential users of the Country Park. The feedback had been mixed and a clear need had not 
been identified. Although a possible location had been mooted it was not entirely suitable due 
its proximity to the A40 in a biodiverse area. There was agreement if this project were to go 
ahead it would need to be more of an educational area than Forest School and safety of users 
would have to be paramount. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That, at this stage Witney Town Council does not support the creation of Forest School or 
Education Area at the Lake & Country Park.  
  
 

P554   FLOODING IN WITNEY 
 
This item was added at the request of the Chair to allow public participation from the Witney 
Flood Mitigation Group. 

 
Members advised the queries raised by the group would be passed to officers who had begun 
work on a Land Management Strategy for the Lake and Country Park and an Emergency Plan. 
The latter would be considered at a meeting of the Full Council on 6th December and was 
unlikely to be a completed article but it would hopefully begin to address concerns raised by the 
group. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at: 7.35 pm 

 
Chair 

Page 2Page 22



1


Witney Town Council


Planning Minutes - 2nd November 2021


552


552- 1
 WTC/188/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03115/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 12/10/2021


Location :-
 WITNEY SERVICE STATION
 Date Returned :-
 03/11/2021

WELCH WAY


Proposal :
 Installation of three self-service car wash bays.


Observations :
 While Witney Town Council does not object to this application, members are 

concerned that the proposed development sits directly on the boundary of 

residential properties in Corn Bar and Bartlett Close, residents who may not 

have been consulted during this process. The operation of the proposed 

services are likely to generate significant levels of noise and disturbance and 

members question the neighbourliness of such a development. Policy OS2 

requires that all development be compatible with adjoining uses and not have a 

harmful impact on the amenity of existing occupants. Members request that 

should approval be given, conditions are applied that limit operating hours of the 

car wash services in order that noise is minimised at sensitive times.


552- 2
 WTC/189/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02640/ADV
 Type :- 
 ADVERTISIN


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 12/10/2021


Location :-
 42 CORN STREET
 Date Returned :-
 03/11/2021

CORN STREET


Proposal :
 Installation of one fascia and one projecting sign, both internally illuminated 

together with a non-illuminated banner style flag. (Retrospective).


Observations :
 Members of Witney Town Council support the installation of the fascia and 

projecting sign. However, the banner style flag is not of a design, quality, or 

materials that members can support.


552- 3
 WTC/190/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03261/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 18/10/2021


Location :-
 15 MARKET SQUARE
 Date Returned :-
 04/11/2021

MARKET SQUARE


Proposal :
 Alterations to replace front windows and install two windows in rear elevation.


Observations :
 Whilst Witney Town Council do not object to this application, Members ask that 

the applicant consider upgrading the window specifications to include triple 

glazing in any new window fittings at the front and the rear of the property. In 

accordance with Policy OS3, all development proposals should minimise 

energy demands and energy loss through design and materials.


552- 4
 WTC/191/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03262/LBC
 Type :- 
 LISTED BUI


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 18/10/2021


Location :-
 15 MARKET SQAURE
 Date Returned :-
 04/11/2021

MARKET SQUARE


Proposal :
 Internal and external alterations to replace front windows and install two 


Page No  3


Page 3

Minute Item P552

Page 23



windows in rear elevation.


Observations :
 Whilst Witney Town Council do not object to this application, Members ask that 

the applicant consider upgrading the window specifications to include triple 

glazing in any new window fittings at the front and the rear of the property. In 

accordance with Policy OS3, all development proposals should minimise 

energy demands and energy loss through design and materials.


552- 5
 WTC/192/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/02618/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 18/10/2021


Location :-
 141 QUEEN EMMAS DYKE
 Date Returned :-
 08/11/2021

QUEEN EMMAS DYKE


Proposal :
 Erection of a pair of semi detached dwellings together with associated works 

and provision of vehicular access.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council object to this application:


1. Members concur with the comments from Oxfordshire County Council, the 

proposed development does not provide adequate provision for parking or 

access. This is contrary to policy T4


2. The proposed development represents over development of the site, with a 

negative impact on the streetscene. Policy OS2 requires development should 

be of a proportionate and appropriate scale, the plans fail to meet this 

requirement.


Further, Members expressed concern for the loss of permeable drainage and 

would ask that in the event of this application being approved, mitigating 

measures are sought by the applicant to decrease the possibility of surface 

water flooding in this area, in accordance with policy EH7 of the West 

Oxfordshire Local Plan.


552- 6
 WTC/193/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03399/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 21/10/2021


Location :-
 14 SAXON WAY
 Date Returned :-
 04/11/2021

SAXON WAY


Proposal :
 Erection of a double storey rear extension, with flat roof to match neighbouring 

property. External materials to match existing.


Observations :
 While Witney Town Council does not object to this application, the Council ask 

that officers pay due regard to ensuring that the development does not cause a 

harmful overlooking to neighbouring properties, specifically the windows facing 

no.12 Saxon Way.


552- 7
 WTC/194/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03406/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 21/10/2021


Location :-
 37 SAXON WAY
 Date Returned :-
 08/11/2021

SAXON WAY


Proposal :
 Renovation and remodelling to including proposed extension.


Observations :
 Whilst Witney Town Council do not object to the proposal, Members make the 

following observations:


1. Can Officers consider the size and scale of the proposal - the increase in the 

building footprint is quite significant. Policy OS2 requires that all development 

be of a proportionate and appropriate scale to its context.


Page No  4


Page 4Page 24



2. Members discussed the ground-cover materials used at the front and rear of 

the property and are concerned about any loss of permeable drainage. 

Members request that in the event of approval being granted, conditions are 

applied to ensure that permeable surface treatments are used in the areas 

marked 'Gravel Drive' at the front of the property, and 'Paving' at the rear of the 

property.


Queen Emmas Dyke runs along the rear boundary of this property and the 

application site sits within Flood Zone 2. Members ask that given the close 

proximity of the stream and the large reduction of permeable drainage, Officers 

carefully consider any increase to local flood risk, and that any mitigating 

measures be considered.


552- 8
 WTC/195/21
 Plot Ref :-
21/03319/HHD
 Type :- 
 HOUSEHOLDE


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 25/10/2021


Location :-
 118C QUARRY ROAD
 Date Returned :-
 04/11/2021

QUARRY ROAD


Proposal :
 Single storey extension.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council has no objections regarding this application.


552- 9
 WTC/196/21
 Plot Ref :-
19/03317/FUL
 Type :- 
 FULL


Applicant Name :-
 .
 Date Received :-
 25/10/2021


Location :-
 LAND WEST OF HAILEY ROAD
 Date Returned :-
 18/11/2021

HAILEY ROAD


Proposal :
 Erection of 110 residential dwellings including access off Hailey Road; areas of 

open space; landscaping; and associated works.


Observations :
 Witney Town Council object to the application for the following reasons:


1. As stated in their consultee response "Thames Water has identified an 

inability of the existing FOUL WATER network infrastructure to accommodate 

the needs of this development proposal." The current sewer network is unable to 

cope with existing demand and Witney continues to see untreated sewage 

pumped into the River Windrush and Witney's watercourses. This greatly 

impacts the health of the river and is a risk to animal and human health. 

Additional demand on the network without any infrastructure upgrade will 

exacerbate this problem and we will see more frequent instances of permitted 

sewage release into our river network. These issues are not addressed by the 

amended plans and neither the proposal nor the associated documents 

illustrate any agreement with Thames Water to alleviate this issue.


2. The additional car movements will have significant detrimental impact on the 

air quality in Witney, particularly in West End and on Bridge Street. West 

Oxfordshire District Council have declared this area of Witney as an Air Quality 

Management Area (AQMA). Without the planned new road infrastructure being 

in place, (Northern Distributor Road, Shores Green and the West End Link 

Road) additional traffic entering Witney from the North will inevitably increase 

pollutant levels in an area already failing the Government's objective for nitrogen 

dioxide levels. Policy EH8 requires that developments will need to be supported 

by an air quality assessment. The developer's submission is inconsistent in 

relation to the air quality in Bridge Street. 


3. Witney Town Council cannot support this development without the planned 

road infrastructure improvements (Northern Distributor Road, Shores Green and 

the West End Link Road) being in place ahead of any application being 

approved. As per Policy WIT2


Page No  5


Page 5Page 25



4. The amended plans show an improvement in cycle networks, but these are 

not sufficient in meeting the objectives of Policy T3 which requires that all new 

development will be located and designed to maximise opportunities for walking, 

cycling and the use of public transport. Further Policy T3 states that 

development that fails to make adequate provision of measures to encourage 

the use of non-car modes of transport will not be favourably considered. The 

proposal needs to do more to provide safe connections for children cycling to 

Witney secondary schools.


5. In accordance with Policy WIT2, Witney Town Council echo the concerns of 

the WODC Planning Policy Manager and ask that any proposals for sites in the 

identified North Witney Strategic Development Area, are applications 

conforming to an agreed Masterplan, and that development of this site be 

phased in accordance with the timing of provision of infrastructure and facilities 

that support this scale of growth


6. Witney Town Council has concerns about the suitability of the soil at the 

application site and the suitability of soakaway installation.


7. Policy OS3 requires that development proposals are prudent in their use of 

natural resources including minimising energy demands and energy loss and 

maximising resource efficiency. The proposal is not ambitious in this regard, 

and much more could be achieved in terms of forward-thinking, carbon neutral 

house design.


8. Witney Town Council request that some electric vehicle charging points be 

installed in the shared and allocated parking spaces that are not in the 

immediate vicinity of a property.


9. Witney Town Council would not want to see any parcels of land become 

unadopted, or covenants placed on any of the land


10. Witney Town Council expects that in the event that planning permission is 

granted, that the approved plans fully comply with Hailey's Neighbourhood Plan.


And finally, In the event of this application being approved, Witney Town Council 

anticipate that residents of this development will be using Witney facilities, 

Witney being the nearest service centre, and we request a S106 contribution 

towards the provision of sports pitches, a recreational facility much in demand 

in Witney and largely unavailable in the North of Witney.


The Meeting closed at :  7:35pm


Signed : 
 Date:
Chairman


On behalf of :- 
 Witney Town Council


Page No  6


Page 6Page 26



1


Witney Town Council


Climate, Biodiversity & Planning  23.11.2021


5


Plot Ref :-
 21/03377/FUL
 Type :-
 FULL
5 . 1
 WTC/197/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 02/11/21

WEST
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 UNIT 5 NIMROD
 Agent

DE HAVILLAND WAY


Proposals :- 
 Internal alterations to Units 3, 4 and 5 to create additonal floor 

space together with the insertion of external windows to the front 

elevation of Unit 5.


Observations :-


Plot Ref :-
 21/03383/ADV
 Type :-
 ADVERTISIN
5 . 2
 WTC/198/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 02/11/21

WEST
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 4 TUNGSTEN PARK
 Agent

COLLETTS WAY


Proposals :- 
 Erection of internally illuminated and non illuminated fascia lettering 

and two freestanding signs (one internally illuminated).


Observations :-


Plot Ref :-
 21/03550/HHD
 Type :-
 HOUSEHOL
5 . 3
 WTC/199/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 02/11/21

WEST
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 34 WESTCOTE CLOSE
 Agent

WESTCOTE CLOSE


Proposals :- 
 Single storey front extension to enlarge kitchen, loft conversion to 

provide additional ensuite bedroom, and add bifolding doors to 

rear.


Observations :-


Plot Ref :-
 21/03573/HHD
 Type :-
 HOUSEHOL
5 . 4
 WTC/200/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 10/11/21

NORTH
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 WITNEY HOUSE, 17 
 Agent

WEST END

WEST END


Proposals :- 
 Demolition of existing sunroom, erection of new garden room 

extension, minor internal alterations and proposed internal 

openings. Side roof bin storage extension.


Observations :-


Page  1


Page 27

Agenda Item 5



Plot Ref :-
 21/03574/LBC
 Type :-
 LISTED BUI
5 . 5
 WTC/201/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 10/11/21

NORTH
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 WITNEY HOUSE, 17 
 Agent

WEST END

WEST END


Proposals :- 
 Demolition of existing sunroom, erection of new garden room 

extension, minor internal alterations and proposed internal 

openings. Side roof bin storage extension.


Observations :-


Plot Ref :-
 21/03085/HHD
 Type :-
 HOUSEHOL
5 . 6
 WTC/202/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 15/11/21

EAST
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 321 MANOR ROAD
 Agent

MANOR ROAD


Proposals :- 
 Erection of single storey rear and side extensions together with 

construction of rear pergola.


Observations :-


Plot Ref :-
 21/03594/FUL
 Type :-
 FULL
5 . 7
 WTC/203/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 15/11/21

CENTRAL
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 33A HIGH STREET
 Agent

HIGH STREET


Proposals :- 
 Temporary change of use from shop to store room for use by 

Scouts and church.


Observations :-


Plot Ref :-
 21/03565/HHD
 Type :-
 HOUSEHOL
5 . 8
 WTC/204/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 15/11/21

EAST
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 81A NEWLAND
 Agent

NEWLAND


Proposals :- 
 Single storey side extension. Provision of new solar panels to front 

elevation.


Observations :-


Plot Ref :-
 21/03673/HHD
 Type :-
 HOUSEHOL
5 . 9
 WTC/205/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 15/11/21

CENTRAL
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 36 GLOUCESTER PLACE
 Agent

GLOUCESTER PLACE


Proposals :- 
 Single storey flat roof rear extension and removal of conservatory.


Observations :-


Page  2


Page 28



Plot Ref :-
 21/03405/OUT
 Type :-
 OUTLINE
5 . 10
 WTC/206/21


Applicant Name :- 
 .
 Date Received :- 
 16/11/21

DUCKLINGTON
 Date Returned :- 
Parish :-


Location :-
 LAND EAST OF WITNEY 
 Agent

ROAD

DUCKLINGTON


Proposals :- 
 Outline planning permission for up to 120 dwellings with 

associated landscaping and infrastructure with detailed vehicular 

access from Witney Road (with all other matters including other 

access arrangements reserved).


Observations :-


Page  3


Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 

 

Date: 2 November 2021 
OCC ref: MW.0083/21 
 
Mrs Groth 
Clerk to Witney Town Council 
Town Hall 
Market Square 
Witney 
OX28 6AG 

Environment and Place  
County Hall 
New Road 
Oxford 
OX1 1ND 

Rachel Wileman 
Assistant Director Strategic 
Infrastructure and Planning 

 
Dear Mrs Groth 

Additional Information 
 
Planning application by Ubico Ltd for planning permission: Proposed re-
positioning of offices, cycle/ motorcycle and car parking, lorry parking, lighting 
and ancillary accommodation.  Use of existing building for vehicle repairs and 
storage, inc. minor enlargement to vehicle bay door.  Installation of CCTV 
cameras. Alterations to hours of operations. at Recycling Depot, Supergas 
Industrial Estate, Minster Lovell, OX29 0SZ 
 
 
Additional information has been submitted relating to the above application. The 
following new documents have been submitted: 
 
• Application Form 
• Planning and Transport Statement, May 2021 version E 18.10.21 
• All other submitted support docs remain the same as the original submission 
 
This is a re-consultation as the applicant wishes to now also amend the hours and 
working days for vehicle movements and recycling operations. 
 
You can view all the documents and comment online at the link below, using reference 
MW.0083/21. 
 
https://myeplanning2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/Planning/Display/MW.0083/21?cuuid=C58E81D
4-2C22-4CF0-BF38-3F33AD5902B8 
 
Please can you submit any comments you may have by 25 November 2021.  
 
Any comments made previously will still be taken into account in the 
determination of the application. There is no need to write again unless you have 
further comments specifically on the new information or amendment to the 
proposals. 
 
NOTE Consideration of the development may take place in public and representations 
may be published. The proposal may be considered by the Council's Planning & 
Regulation Committee (Only comments relating to planning issues will be taken into 
account when reaching a decision). 
 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5a

https://myeplanning2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/Planning/Display/MW.0083/21?cuuid=C58E81D4-2C22-4CF0-BF38-3F33AD5902B8
https://myeplanning2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/Planning/Display/MW.0083/21?cuuid=C58E81D4-2C22-4CF0-BF38-3F33AD5902B8


 

 

The Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended requires the determination of 
planning applications to be a public process. The Council will make information 
submitted in relation to planning applications available for public inspection and so it is 
not possible to take into account in the determination of the application any comments 
which are submitted confidentially. If you wish to submit any comments regarding this 
application, your comments as well as your name and postal address may be disclosed 
to third parties including those who have submitted the planning application.  
 
Oxfordshire County Council is a data controller for the purposes of the General Data 
Protection Regulation (Regulation (EU) 2016/679 of the European Parliament and of the 
Council dated 27th April 2016).  For more details on how the Council will handle your 
personal information, please use the link below to access our Privacy Notice. Hard 
copies of this can also be provided on request: 
 
https://www2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/aboutyourcoun
cil/corporateovernance/GenericPrivacyNotice.pdf  
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

Emma Bolster 
 

Emma Bolster 
Planning Officer 
 
Direct line: 07775 824954 
Email: emma.bolster@oxfordshire.gov.uk 

www.oxfordshire.gov.uk 

Page 32

https://www2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/aboutyourcouncil/corporateovernance/GenericPrivacyNotice.pdf
https://www2.oxfordshire.gov.uk/cms/sites/default/files/folders/documents/aboutyourcouncil/corporateovernance/GenericPrivacyNotice.pdf


NOTIFICATIONS OF PLANNING DECISIONS FROM  West Oxfordshire District Council


Minute Ref  6
 Tue 23 November 2021
 District Ref  


Page No :
 1
' C ' Contrary to District  'CD' Contrary Delegated 

' D ' Delegated


' E ' Endorsed by District  'ED'  Endorsed Delegated


GRANTED PLANNING PERMISSIONS


C
 WTC/123/21
 Approved
 UNIT 1-5 AVENUE TWO

District COMMENT   
 Local COMMENT   Witney Town Council object to this 


application. The South West corner of the site is 

adjacent to the main pedestrian access to Witney 

Lake and Country Park. This important recreational 

facility is in constant use and the perimeter of this site 

neighbours the access point to the Public Footpath 

right of way for families, children and dog-walkers and 

is also a pedestrian route for school children. The 'IN' 

and 'OUT' as marked on the vehicle splays on drawing 

'14920 - 110K - PROPOSED SITE PLAN - A1' indicate 

that HGVs would cross the pavement at the 'IN' gates 

and that vehicles exiting at the 'OUT' gates have 

extremely limited space to join the highway safely. 

This highway danger is compounded by Avenue Two 

being regularly used for roadside parking, which would 

further limit manoeuvrability for large vehicles. 

Members request that these points are reviewed by 

the Highways Authority as well as the careful 

consideration of the Planning Officer. Based on the 

proposed layout, Witney Town Council would request 

that prior to occupation, the applicant submit further 

plans to be approved by the relevant authority, to 

improve the access to and allowing safe routes for all 

to access Witney Lake & Country Park.


Additionally, members noted that the highway 

adjacent to the site is a frequently used cycle route 

which links into the cycle network for Witney. Allowing 

HGVs to access the site on the quiet road on the 

Western boundary would pose a danger for cyclists 

using this route.


Witney Town Council does agree in principle to the 

redevelopment of this site and would rather welcome 

an application with a revised layout that includes the 

vehicular access being moved to the North of the site 

where it would be less of a safety risk for our residents 

using this important recreational space.


E
 WTC/129/21
 Approved
 45 MILL STREET


E
 WTC/142/21
 Approved
 46 PINE RISE


E
 WTC/143/21
 Approved
 4 CHURCH LANE


E
 WTC/145/21
 Approved
 376 THORNEY LEYS


E
 WTC/146/21
 Approved
 15 CORNDELL GARDENS


E
 WTC/148/21
 Approved
 15 MARKET SQUARE


Page 33

Agenda Item 6



NOTIFICATIONS OF PLANNING DECISIONS FROM  West Oxfordshire District Council


Minute Ref  6
 Tue 23 November 2021
 District Ref  


Page No :
 2
' C ' Contrary to District  'CD' Contrary Delegated 

' D ' Delegated


' E ' Endorsed by District  'ED'  Endorsed Delegated


GRANTED PLANNING PERMISSIONS


E
 WTC/150/21
 Approved
 33 WILLOWBANK


E
 WTC/151/21
 Approved
 1, 2 & 3 STANLEY COURT


E
 WTC/152/21
 Approved
 OLD ORCHARD COURT


E
 WTC/157/21
 Approved
 87 PENSCLOSE


E
 WTC/158/21
 Approved
 UNIT 3-4 WOOLGATE


E
 WTC/160/21
 Approved
 35 FARMERS CLOSE


E
 WTC/161/21
 Approved
 44 ASHCOMBE CRESCENT


E
 WTC/162/21
 Approved
 81 FARMERS CLOSE


C
 WTC/163/21
 Approved
 UNIT 1-5 AVENUE TWO

District COMMENT   
 Local COMMENT   The Transport Design Technical 


Note fails to recognise that Avenue Two is not a dead 

end for pedestrians and cyclists. It is a public right of 

way and the main access point to the Lake & Country 

Park.


To ensure safe cycle and pedestrian access to the 

Country Park, Lake and ongoing footpaths and cycle 

routes, the vehicular movements within the site need 

to be redesigned to exploit and optimize entry and exit 

for HGV and customer vehicles to the section of 

Avenue Two that runs East to West, on the Northern 

boundary of the development site.


This map shows that a marked cycle route links 

Ducklington to the Southern end of Avenue Two and is 

marked again at the Northern end of Avenue Two. The 

North section is wider, with more robust infrastructure, 

making the presence of HGVs turning into the northern 

side of the application site more acceptable in relation 

to cycling and walking. It is wholly inappropriate to 

introduce HGVs to the narrow unmarked linking 

Southern stretch of Avenue Two that currently has only 

traffic for commerce and light industry, not HGVs. 

Planning priorities should be seeking to reduce motor 

vehicle traffic on that stretch and to enhance the active 

travel link.


The suggestion that parking restrictions be introduced 

to facilitate the HGV access penalises Witney 

residents who are currently able to park for access to 

the country park and lake. There is no alternative 

parking for such recreational use, particularly for 


Page 34



NOTIFICATIONS OF PLANNING DECISIONS FROM  West Oxfordshire District Council


Minute Ref  6
 Tue 23 November 2021
 District Ref  


Page No :
 3
' C ' Contrary to District  'CD' Contrary Delegated 

' D ' Delegated


' E ' Endorsed by District  'ED'  Endorsed Delegated


GRANTED PLANNING PERMISSIONS


residents of limited mobility.


E
 WTC/164/21
 Approved
 4 TUNGSTEN PARK


E
 WTC/165/21
 Approved
 49 VALENCE CRESCENT


E
 WTC/167/21
 Approved
 14 HERON DRIVE


E
 WTC/168/21
 Approved
 95 BURFORD ROAD


E
 WTC/169/21
 Approved
 27 MARKET SQUARE


E
 WTC/173/21
 Approved
 38 DAVENPORT ROAD


E
 WTC/177/21
 Approved
 63 CORN STREET


E
 WTC/178/21
 Approved
 24 PARK ROAD


E
 WTC/180/21
 Approved
 5 LAVENDER VIEW


E
 WTC/182/21
 Approved
 198 WADARDS MEADOW


E
 WTC/184/21
 Approved
 UNIT 5 WOOLGATE SHOPPING CENTR


E
 WTC/186/21
 Approved
 6 CHURCH GREEN


REFUSED PLANNING PERMISSIONS


WTC/134/21
 Refused
 66 CORN STREET
E


WTC/147/21
 Refused
 RAZZI HOUSE
E


WTC/155/21
 Refused
 35 - 37 WOODGREEN
C


District COMMENT   By reason of its scale and massing, the 
 Local COMMENT   Witney Town Council welcomes 

proposed development will result in the primacy of the original 
 this new proposal and has no objections. Members 

property being eroded or lost altogether and would fail to 
 note the loss of permeable drainage and would ask 

preserve the special historic, architectural and evidential 
 that mitigating measures are considered to help 

interest of the listed building. It is contrary to West Oxfordshire 
 decrease the possibility of surface water flooding in 

Local Plan policies EH9, EH10, EH11, EH12, and OS4; NPPF 
 this area, in accordance with policy EH7 of the West 

Section 16; West Oxfordshire Design Guide sections 7 and 14; 


Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.

NPPF Section 16; and Witney and Cogges Conservation Area 

Appraisal.


WTC/156/21
 Refused
 35 - 37 WOODGREEN
C


District COMMENT   By reason of its scale and massing, the 
 Local COMMENT   Witney Town Council welcomes 

this new proposal and has no objections. Members 

note the loss of permeable drainage and would ask 


Page 35



NOTIFICATIONS OF PLANNING DECISIONS FROM  West Oxfordshire District Council


Minute Ref  6
 Tue 23 November 2021
 District Ref  


Page No :
 4
' C ' Contrary to District  'CD' Contrary Delegated 

' D ' Delegated


' E ' Endorsed by District  'ED'  Endorsed Delegated


REFUSED PLANNING PERMISSIONS


proposed development will result in the primacy of the original 
 that mitigating measures are considered to help 

property being eroded or lost altogether and would fail to 
 decrease the possibility of surface water flooding in 

preserve the special historic, architectural and evidential 
 this area, in accordance with policy EH7 of the West 

interest of the listed building. It is contrary to West Oxfordshire 
 Oxfordshire Local Plan 2031.

Local Plan policies EH9, EH10, EH11, EH12, and OS4; NPPF 

Section 16; West Oxfordshire Design Guide sections 7 and 14; 

NPPF Section 16; and Witney and Cogges Conservation Area 

Appraisal.


WTC/175/21
 Refused
 74 NEWLAND
C


District COMMENT   The proposed scheme by reason of its 
 Local COMMENT   Witney Town Council has no 

siting, design, massing and scale would have a harmful 
 objections regarding this application.

impact on the Conservation Area, the Locally Listed Building 

and on the living conditions of the neighbouring property by 

reason of its overbearing Impact and loss of light. The 

proposal is therefore considered contrary to Policies OS2, 

OS4, EH9, EH10, EH11, The West Oxfordshire Design Guide, 

The National Design Guide and relevant

chapters of the NPPF.


Page 36



Reply to : Andrea Thomas
Tel :  01993 861000
Email: ers@westoxon.gov.uk

The Town Council Your Ref:

Date:

W/21/00940/PRMA

29th October 2021

Dear Town Clerk,

LICENSING ACT 2003

Application for New Premises Licence

We have received an application for   Acqua Salata Ltd 62 Corn Street Witney Oxfordshire OX28 
6BS     under the Licensing Act 2003.

The application can be viewed through the online Public Access Portal.    If you would like to make formal 
representation, the closing date is 26th November 2021

Please ensure that all email correspondence is sent to ers@westoxon.gov.uk.  

Yours faithfully

Michelle Bignell (Mrs)
Service Leader
Licensing and Business Support
Environmental and Regulatory Services

West Oxfordshire District Council may share information provided to it with other bodies responsible for auditing or 
administering public funds in order to prevent and detect fraud under Section 6 of the Audit Commission Act 1998

Page 37

Agenda Item 7

http://publicaccess.westoxon.gov.uk/online-applicationssecurity/login?service=http%3A%2F%2Fpublicaccess.westoxon.gov.uk%2Fonline-applications%2Fj_acegi_cas_security_check


This page is intentionally left blank



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Page 47



Page 48



Page 49



Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 

Adoption Statement 

In accordance with Regulations 16(2) and 19 of the of the Town & Country Planning (Local 

Development) (England) Regulations 2004 and Regulations 11 and 14 of the Town and 

Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012, notice is hereby given that 

West Oxfordshire District Council adopted the Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning 

Document (SPD) at a meeting of the Council held on the 27th October 2021 at 2pm. 

In accordance with Section 23(1) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, the 

SPD includes a number of modifications to take account of representations made in relation 

to the document and also to take account of other relevant matters including national policy 

changes.  

Any person with sufficient interest in the decision to adopt the SPD may apply to the High 

Court for permission to apply for judicial review of that decision. Any such application must 

be made promptly and in any event not later than 3 months after the date on which the SPD 

was adopted (i.e. by 27th January 2022).   

Copies of this adoption statement, the Affordable Housing SPD and a Consultation Summary 

Report setting out the main issues raised during the preparation of the SPD and how those 

have been addressed in the final adoption version are available online via the following link: 

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy/supplementary-

planning-documents/  

Hard copies have also been made available in the locations listed below.  

 

Date: 4 November 2021 

  

Page 59

Agenda Item 8

https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-documents/
https://www.westoxon.gov.uk/planning-and-building/planning-policy/supplementary-planning-documents/


West Oxfordshire District 

Council Offices 

Woodgreen 

New Yatt Road 

Witney 

OX28 1NB 

Tel: 01993 861000 

Open: Monday – Friday 

9am to 5pm  

Witney Library 

Welch Way 

Witney 

OX28 6JH 

Tel: 01993 703659 

Carterton Library 

6 Alvescot Road 

Carterton 

OX18 3JH 

Tel: 01993 841492 

Chipping Norton Library 

Goddards Lane 

Chipping Norton 

OX7 5NP 

Tel: 01608 643559 

 

Eynsham Library 

30 Mill Street 

Eynsham 

OX29 4JS 

Tel: 01865 880525 

Woodstock Library 

The Oxfordshire Museum 
Fletcher's House 
Park Street 
Woodstock 
OX20 1SN  
Tel: 01993 814124 

 

 

Page 60



 
1 

 

WITNEY TRAFFIC ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Held on Tuesday, 28 September 2021 
 

At 2.30 pm in the Virtual Meeting Room via Zoom 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor A Coles (Chair) 
 

Councillors: A Prosser 
 
T Fenton 
D Enright 
H Eaglestone 
M Johnson 

J Aitman 
 
Oxfordshire County Council 
Oxfordshire County Council 
West Oxfordshire District Council 
West Oxfordshire District Council 

 
Others: T Bayliss Stagecoach Oxfordshire 
 K Hickman Windrush Bike Project 
 A Lyon West Oxfordshire Comm Transport 
 D Miles Parish Transport Representative 

 
Officers: Adam Clapton Witney Town Council 
 Claire Green Witney Town Council 
 Odele Parsons Oxfordshire County Council 
 Kim Sutherland 

James Wright 
Oxfordshire County Council 
Oxfordshire County Council 

 Will Barton 
 

West Oxfordshire District Council 

Others: 5 members of the public. 
 
 

T799   ELECTION OF CHAIR 
 
Nominations were sought for the position of Chair for the municipal year. 

 
It was proposed and duly seconded that Cllr Andrew Coles be elected Chair. There being no 
other nominations it was: 
 
Resolved: 
 
That, Cllr Andrew Coles be elected Chair of the Committee for the municipal year. 
 

T800   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Liz Duncan, Chris Hulme from Thames Valley 
Police, Mark Upton from the Oxfordshire Association for the Blind and Maria Wheatley from 
West Oxfordshire District Council. 
 
 
 

Page 61

Agenda Item 9



Witney Traffic Advisory - 28 September 2021 

 
2 

T801   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
The Committee adjourned for Public Participation. 
 
Jan Van de Helvang addressed the Committee concerning agenda item 10 on behalf of the 
Windrush Valley Traffic Action Group (WiVTAG). 
 
Richard Stevens & Rae Cather addressed the Committee concerning agenda item 11 on behalf of 
residents of Church Green, Witney. 
 
Charlotte Tremain addressed the Committee at a later juncture concerning agenda item 12 (d). 
 

T802   SCHOOL STREETS - CHURCH GREEN 
 
The Committee received and considered documentation from residents of Church Green, 
Witney concerning potential options to increase safety for pedestrians and cyclists. 
 
Members welcomed the document and praised the residents on the professionalism and scope 
of the options presented. The suggestions were sensible, would amend the current access and 
make the area a safer, less noisy and less polluted place for residents and schoolchildren. The 
Committee heard that the document was not necessarily setting out solutions; these were what 
had emerged from what residents had said and was open for discussion.  
 
It was agreed there was scope for these proposals to be considered as part of the County 
Council’s developing LCWIP. In addition, there were further possibilities to interact with other 
immediate areas such as Corn Street and the Market Place. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That, County Council officers consider the suggestions included within the document provided 
by residents and report back to the next meeting. 
 

T803   BURFORD A361 - EXPERIMENTAL TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDER (ETRO) 
 
The Committee had received an update on the Burford A361 ETRO scheme through public 
participation which was reiterated by the Chair. 
 
Members heard the County Council had agreed to continue with the Order until January 2022 
and were engaging with parishes and gathering as much data as possible to make an informed 
decision at that time. Further information was needed on air quality, which was already poor in 
the Bridge Street area. Upcoming traffic surveys, with traffic nearing pre-covid levels, might offer 
more evidence. 
 
The Committee agreed that the interim data in June had shown an impact on areas of Witney 
and it re-affirmed its earlier resolution to continue asking that the order be withdrawn and 
alternative options explored. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the update on the Burford A361 ETRO be noted, and 

 

Page 62



Witney Traffic Advisory - 28 September 2021 

 
3 

2. That, Witney Traffic Advisory Committee supports the cessation of the order at the earliest 
opportunity, and 

 
3. That, Witney Town Council considers re-affirming support for the Windrush Valley Traffic 

Action Group through its committee process. 
 

T804   TO ADOPT AND SIGN AS A CORRECT  RECORD THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON  8 
JUNE 2021 
 
Resolved: 

 
That, the minutes of the Witney Traffic Advisory Committee held on 8 June 2021 be approved 
and signed by the Chair. 
 

T805   MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES NOT COVERED IN THE ACTION PLAN OR 
SUBSEQUENT ITEMS 
 
T795 – Hailey Road/Farmers Close Safety Concerns – A member advised that the hedge in this 
area which was hindering visibility had been cut down since the last meeting which had been 
welcomed by residents. 
 
There were no further matters arising from the minutes of 8 June 2021. 
 

T806   ACTION PLAN 
 
The Chair advised several issues were covered under later agenda items. 
 
T762 – Ducklington roundabout – The Chair advised he would look at this issue with officers and 
the County Councillor for Ducklington before the next meeting. Ducklington Parish Council had 
also been active on this issue and discussions on the potential installation of barriers had not 
been successful due to safety concerns.  
 

T807   WITNEY HIGH STREET - SOCIAL DISTANCING MEASURES 
 
The Committee received a verbal update on the Witney High Street social distancing measures 
from the District Council’s Business Development Officer. 
 
Members were advised that a public survey, run by the District Council had taken place and the 
responses on how to move forward with the measures were split. Options would be prepared 
and debated at the District Council in the coming weeks and would include, continuing the 
current measures until January, keeping the measures without walking barriers in the road, or 
supporting the County Council on more permanent restrictions. 
 
Members were asked their thoughts and the consensus was that the restrictions had made 
shoppers feel safer and less polluting environment. A shift had been made towards walking, 
cycling and improving pedestrian access and that business had not suffered due to the lack of 
thru traffic. There was optimism that permanent restrictions could help breathe new life into the 
town centre. Comments made from the public on reduced footfall did not seem to be borne out 
by the evidence. 
 
There was some concern in recent weeks, due to an improving national situation, that 
restrictions were being adhered to less than they were and if permanent measures were to 

Page 63



Witney Traffic Advisory - 28 September 2021 

 
4 

remain, the Corn Street/High Street junction would need to be re-considered and the planters 
may need to be relocated further down the road in the interests of safety. There would also 
need to be some thought given to enforcement of any new regulations. 
 
The Committee also discussed how the future of the town centre could be looked at as a whole, 
all three tiers of local government were stakeholders on how to bring about improvements. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That, the verbal update provided by West Oxfordshire District Council’s Business Development 
Officer be noted. 
 

T808   WOODSTOCK ROAD - TRAFFIC ISSUES 
 
The Committee received and considered correspondence from a resident of Woodstock Road 
concerning road safety. 
 
Members were sympathetic to the concerns and were disappointed no reply had been received 
from Thames Valley Police who were responsible for traffic speed enforcement. County Council 
officers were asked if the epicormic growth at the zebra crossing could be looked into and 
members agreed this area could be considered as an area of interest for Community 
Speedwatch.  
 
The Town Council was supporting 20mph zones and the County Council were taking the lead, but 
enforcement would be an ongoing issue without speed cameras and required resources from 
the police. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the resident correspondence be noted, and 

 
2. That, the Town Council writes to Thames Valley Police on behalf of this committee regarding 

the speeding issue in Woodstock Road and lack of response thus far, and, 
 
3. That, County Council officers investigate the visibility around the zebra crossing adjacent to 

Wood Green School, and 
 
4. That, this area be referred to the Community Speedwatch task and finish group. 
 

T809   CLIMATE EMERGENCY 
 
The committee was notified of bi-annual reports and regular bulletins which are issued to 
residents from West Oxfordshire District Council containing the latest climate updates.  
 
Resolved: 
 
That, the climate update reports provided by West Oxfordshire District Council be noted. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 64



Witney Traffic Advisory - 28 September 2021 

 
5 

T810   REPORT OF THE PRINCIPAL OFFICER - TRAFFIC SCHEMES AREA OPERATIONS (NORTH) - 
OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 
The Committee received and considered the report of the Principal Officer concerning updates 
on several projects underway in Witney. 
 
Members were updated on the Active Travel scheme which was nearing the completion of its 
implementation. It was still early days and several snagging issues on lining and positioning of 
20mph signs would be addressed as soon as possible. The exit from Corndell Gradens would also 
be investigated further. Members were advised that lighting near to the Town Council’s 
allotments would be considered moving forward into the next funding phase to improve safety. 
 
Further updates were provided on the Windrush Bike Project Barriers Report, Windrush Place 
s106 contributions, Public Transport at Centenary Way, the emerging Local Transport 
Connectivity Plan, and the Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan. A planning application 
was expected early in 2022 in relation to the Shores Green junction. To implement a Low Traffic 
Neighbourhood Scheme at Burwell, members were advised traffic surveys would need to be 
undertaken and the County Council had no budget in place for this. Usually carried out through 
numberplate recognition, there was discussion on whether volunteers could be used to carry 
this out but it was agreed there would need to be some end product.  
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the report be noted; and, 

 
2. County Council Officers carry out a road safety visit on exiting Corndell Gardens; and, 
 
3. That, options on a traffic survey at Burwell are brought back to the next meeting – whether 

it could be included as part of the LCWIP; and, 
 
4. Whether volunteers could be used to carry out traffic surveys. 
 

T811   COMMUNITY SPEEDWATCH 
 
The Committee received and considered the report and an update bulletin concerning 
Community Speedwatch. 
 
The Chair advised that progress on the project had been slow but there were offers of funding 
for the equipment and several areas of interest had already been identified. 
 
It was agreed that a task and finish group should be established to progress the project between 
the quarterly meetings of this committee to avoid further delay. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the report and Speedwatch Bulletin be noted, and 

 
2. That, a Task & Finish Group of this Committee be established to progress the project 

consisting of Cllr Andrew Coles, Cllr Joy Aitman, Cllr Ted Fenton, Cllr Mark Johnson and Chris 

Hulme (TVP). 

 

Page 65



Witney Traffic Advisory - 28 September 2021 

 
6 

T812   SAFETY CONCERNS - WEST END, WITNEY 
 
The Committee received and considered correspondence from a resident of West End 
concerning road safety. 
 
County Council Officers advised they had already looked at the issues of concern, including 
accident data on this stretch. While there were no direct funds to address these immediately, 
the developing Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan would address issues raised and it 
was possible a 20mph speed limit may be extended into this area in the future. In addition, the 
committee agreed this area should be looked at by the Community Speedwatch task and finish 
group.   
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the resident correspondence be noted, and 

 
2. That, the response from Oxfordshire County Council officers on this issue be noted, showing 

both mid and long-term solutions, and 
 
3. That, this are be referred to the Community Speedwatch task and finish group as an area of 

interest. 
 

T813   ROAD SURFACING ISSUES 
 
The Committee received correspondence from a resident of Chestnut Close/Vanner Road 
concerning the deterioration of the road surfaces there. 
 
Members were advised by County Council Officers that there was a very limited budget for road 
repairs which was stretched; areas had to be prioritised on safety. There was sadly no current 
capacity to carry out repairs of a lesser nature. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the resident correspondence be noted. 
 

T814   VERGE PARKING IN DANGEROUS LOCATIONS 
 
The committee received correspondence from Cllr Enright concerning verge parking at 
dangerous locations including Crawley Road and Madley Park. 
 
Members agreed this was a problem, emanating from the growth of Witney and the number of 
car users in each household. There was a possibility posts or planters could be installed in these 
areas, possibly funded from Councillor Priority Funds, but it was felt this might exacerbate the 
problem by shifting it to other areas.  
 
The consensus was that residents and members should continue to contact the police and the 
committee would write to Thames Valley Police stressing the problem. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the correspondence from Cllr Enright be noted, and 

 

Page 66



Witney Traffic Advisory - 28 September 2021 

 
7 

2. That, the Committee contacts the police regarding the issue. 
 

T815   ITEMS RAISED AT THE MEETING 
 
A member brought an active County Council parking consultation at Avenue Two, Station Lane 
to members’ attention. The Proposal, tied to an adjacent planning application being considered 
by the District Council would introduce no parking along the road leading to Witney Lake & 
Country Park. Members agreed on opposition to this proposal as the County Council policy was 
to promote walking and cycling and this appeared to be a step in the wrong direction, the area 
providing disabled, pedestrian and cycling access to this important amenity and beyond.  
 
A member raised road surfacing at Edington Road on the Deer park estate and asked that if 
Valence Crescent was being re-surfaced, that the top area of this road was included. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That, the Town Council writes to oppose this consultation on behalf of this committee. 
 

T816   DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING(S) 
 
Members were advised the next scheduled meeting of this committee would be on 11th January 
2022. 
 
Members were generally in favour of making this an in-person meeting but asked whether there 
was a possibility of holding this in a hybrid way, perhaps even at the District Council Offices. The 
Town Council hoped to be able to hold hybrid meetings in the future, but it was unlikely this 
would be available from January. 
 
Resolved: 
 
1. That, the date of the next meeting be noted, and 

 
2. That, this meeting should be held in person subject to any restrictions pertaining to, or 

prevalence of the Covid-19 virus. 
 
 
 

The meeting closed at: 4.42 pm 

 
Chair 

Page 67



This page is intentionally left blank



Reply to : Mikaila South
Tel :  01993 861000
Email: ers@westoxon.gov.uk

The Town Council Your Ref:

Date:

W/21/01061/PAVLIC

19th November 2021

Dear Town Clerk,

BUSINESS AND PLANNING ACT 2020

Application for Pavement Licence

We have received an application for Smarts Fish And Chips 50 Market Square Witney Oxfordshire 
OX28 6AL     under the Business and Planning Act 2020.

The application can be viewed through the online Public Access Portal. If you would like to make formal 
representation, the closing date is 26th November 2021.

Please ensure that all email correspondence is sent to ers@westoxon.gov.uk.  

Yours faithfully

Michelle Bignell (Mrs)
Service Leader
Licensing and Business Support
Environmental and Regulatory Services

West Oxfordshire District Council may share information provided to it with other bodies responsible for auditing or 
administering public funds in order to prevent and detect fraud under Section 6 of the Audit Commission Act 1998

Page 69

Agenda Item 10

https://publicaccess.westoxon.gov.uk/online-applications/login.jsp
mailto:ers@westoxon.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



 

P
age 71



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Page 73



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3a To adopt and sign as correct the minutes of the committee held on 21 September & 12 October (Attached) & 2 November 2021
	Minutes
	P488 Planning Applications
	P490 Avenue Two, Witney - Proposed Parking Restrictions
	P491 Oxfordshire Plan 2050
	Minutes Public Pack, 12/10/2021 Climate, Biodiversity & Planning
	Minutes
	P540 Planning Applications

	Minutes Public Pack, 02/11/2021 Climate, Biodiversity & Planning
	Minutes
	P552 Planning Applications


	5 Planning Applications
	5a Planning Application by Ubico Ltd - Recycling Depot, Supergas Ind Est, Minster Lovell, OX29 0SZ
	6 Planning Decisions
	7 Application for New Premises Licence. W/21/00940/PRMA - Acqua Salata Ltd 62 Corn Street Witney
	DMS-R1QTFLRK05600
	DMS-R1QTFKRK05601
	DMS-R1QTFKRK05600

	8 Adoption of West Oxfordshire Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
	9 Witney Traffic Advisory Committee - 28 September 2021
	10 Pavement Licence Application W/21/01061/PAVLIC - Smarts Fish & Chips, 50 Market Square, Witney
	Application Form
	Site Plan
	Table Layout


